
IESI Bethlehem Landfill Committee Meeting Minutes 

 

Date:  Thursday, March 20, 2014 

Time:  1:10 PM 

Location: Lower Saucon Township Council Meeting Room 

Attendance: Donna Louder, Landfill Committee Member; Al Schleyer, IESI; Chris Taylor, Hanover 

Engineering, Host Municipal Inspector; Priscilla deLeon, Council Liaison.  Absent:  Haz Hijazi. 

 

Mr. Al Schleyer said tonnages for February, the MSW is 16,150.1; C&D was 1,316.2; total residual was 1,255; 

asbestos out of that 1,255 was 383.4 tons for the month; total out of state waste was 12,853.5 tons with 57% of the 

total monthly waste at the landfill; 83% of LST residents used their recycling center.  The number of commercial 

vehicles for the month was 1,850.   

 

Mrs. deLeon said when she attended the Economic Task Force bus tour in the beginning of the month, Sam Donato 

and Jay McLaughlin were on the bus.  Sam had made the comment that you’re decreasing your daily tonnage and it 

looks like you are according to the results.   

 

Mr. Schleyer said for the Form U submittals, there’s Marcal dba Soundview Paper Co.   The paper sludge was 

approved February 20, 2014.  RBH Group was some asbestos for February 27, 2014, and Evergreen Recycling 

Solutions for disposal of their C&D Fines which was submitted on March 19, 2014.   

 

Mr. Taylor asked if Mr. Schleyer had a proposed arrival date for the first shipment of the paper sludge.  Mr. 

Schleyer said they do not as of yet.  Mr. Taylor asked Mr. Schleyer to advise him as soon as they know it’s coming 

in.  He’d like to see it first-hand, right when it comes off the truck; not after it’s been mixed with soil or placed or 

sitting around for a couple of days.  Mr. Schleyer said he’ll let Mr. Taylor know in advance as soon as possible. 

 

Mr. Schleyer said this week they did have the first quarter groundwater sampling event.  It started on Monday, 

March 17
th
 and finished up yesterday.  They were passable on the North Slope.   

 

Mr. Schleyer said general correspondence were Form U submittals, abatement system reports, the monthly reports, 

air quality compliance report, the 4Q13 LST facility report, 4Q13 groundwater report and a LFG well construction 

notice.  Mrs. deLeon asked if there were any issues on any of these reports?  Mr. Schleyer said none that he had 

seen.  Abatement well 7 had some issues, but they replaced some parts and it’s functioning. 

 

Mr. Schleyer said DEP inspections were on February 12, 2014 with Susan French; February 24, 2014 with Walter 

Govern; March 12, 2014 with Susan French; and on March 18, 2014 Bharat Bham was on site monitoring 

groundwater.  Mr. Taylor said it would be good to go over these reports to see what they had to say.  Mrs. deLeon 

said the February 24
th
 inspection report, it has a date of January 15

th
 at the top.  She has two for January 15

th
, page 7 

of 8.  Please make note of it and correct it.  Mr. Taylor said he will correct it.  He said looking through that report, 

the report indicates no violations.  In the comment section, the report indicates the following complaints 

investigated by DEP.  An odor complaint received by DEP on January 16
th
; an odor complaint received on February 

9
th
; an odor complaint received on February 12

th
; and an odor complaint received on February 20

th
 and the resulting 

inspections conducted by DEP on each of those complaints detailed in the comment section.  The other thing to 

mention about the report is it misdates the expiration date of IESI’s insurance certificate.  It’s dated January 31, 

2014.  He contacted Mr. Schleyer about that and Mr. Schleyer advised him that the date should be December 31, 

2014.    

 

Mr. Taylor said DEP reports now contain the lists entitled “IESI Bethlehem PA Odor Patrol Survey” and this is one 

of the first reports that they started including this.  In this particular report, they got Walter Govern investigating on 

February 24
th
, and documenting odor patrol conducted along Shimersville Road and various roads in Steel City 

with odors noted as denoted as other and attributed to mostly wood burning. 

 

   

Mrs. deLeon said she wished she would have thought of this last night.  She told Mr. Taylor he did a very good job 

at the meeting with his responses.  Odor descriptions are:  eg-rotten egg, lfg-landfill gas, g-garbage, s-sewage, d-



IESI Bethlehem Landfill Committee Minutes 

March 20, 2014 

 

     Page 2 of 7 

 

  

dredge, what is dredge?  She never heard of that.  Mr. Schleyer said it might just be a standard listing that DEP uses 

for various locations.   

 

Mr. Taylor said there’s a second page of an odor patrol survey conducted on February 20
th
 by A. Falch.  Does that 

person visit the landfill?  Mr. Schleyer said she has a couple of times in the past year or so.  Mrs. deLeon said is she 

with air or waste?  Mr. Schleyer said he’s not sure.  Becky Easely is their air quality specialist.  Mr. Taylor said she 

conducted an odor patrol on February 20
th
 and noted several odors in Steel City and back around Applebutter Road.  

She detected odors attributed to sewage, wood burning odor, sewage again and then on Riverside Drive, she did 

document a landfill gas odor which she described as light, landfill gas odor on the west end of Riverside.  That was 

at 1508 hours which was 3:08 pm on February 20
th
.  February 18

th
 another odor patrol survey form filled out by 

Warren Govern and he detected a variety of odors mostly attributed to a wood burning odor.  He did not describe 

anything as a landfill gas odor during that patrol.   

 

Ms. Louder said what about the entrance to IESI, the persistent condensate odor.  Mr. Taylor said that was at 11:11 

am; he describes condensate odor at BRE - the old evac truck visible on site.  Mr. Schleyer said he would assume, 

and he doesn’t know for certain, that’s probably their contracted disposal hauler for the condensate.  He might have 

had the tank open and was pumping it out at the time.  That’s why he would be there.  Mrs. deLeon said she 

wonders what a condensate odor smells like.  Mr. Schleyer said it’s a little more pungent than a landfill gas odor 

concentrated.  It’s hard to describe it in terms.  Mrs. deLeon said it’s hard to describe them unless you are actually 

smelling them.  There’s been debate over what landfill methane gas smells like.  So you say it’s worse than landfill 

gas.  Mr. Schleyer said it’s different.  Mrs. deLeon said it still similarly smells like methane gas?  Mr. Schleyer said 

it’s a different odor than a landfill gas odor.  Mrs. deLeon said she pulled out all the reports.  She just saw this when 

you mentioned it and she would have brought it up last night.  When we leave this meeting, she’s going to go and 

tell Leslie because whoever the air quality specialist that gets hired, they need to find out where these odors are 

coming from, they need to know that.   

 

Mr. Taylor said from Wally Govern’s inspection report, Susan French issued a report dated February 20
th
 based on 

the meeting that took place at the landfill on February 12
th
.  Some significant items in her report, she notes the 

landfill flare shut down on the morning of her visit.  The BRE plant had a shut down around 11 am due to a frozen 

inlet valve.  In order to start the BRE plant, they must shut down the flare and then restart the plant, then restart the 

flare.  The flare was back running around 1:15 pm.  That was a frozen inlet valve at BRE.  He asked if BRE took 

any steps to make sure that wasn’t going to happen again?  Mr. Schleyer said he just knows they had to do a shut 

down and they made some changes, but he doesn’t know what they did.  Mr. Taylor said hopefully we don’t have 

weather that cold for quite a while.  That really put a monkey wrench into their system and IESI’s system. 

 

Ms. Louder said it’s mentioned in the PPC plan about the temperature control for their lines and that was even 

discussed when they first came to Council to put those tanks out.  They were supposed to have something in there 

to maintain the temperature of those lines.  Mrs. deLeon said this say the inlet valve, so is it the landfill gas entering 

BRE or is the BRE gas as it enters their holding tanks?  Ms. Louder said maybe someone needs to check into that, 

where it went in and if something should be in place that they promised to be in place, because again, the operation 

was sketchy with them.   

 

Mr. Taylor said the report also indicates an engineer’s meeting on March 12
th
.  The report is not yet received.  

Bharat Bahm from DEP took part in the ground water monitoring exercise on March 18
th
.  The ground water 

sampling is now complete for this quarter.  Mr. Schleyer said host inspections from Mr. Taylor were February 20
th
, 

March 6
th
 and today.   

 

Mr. Schleyer said there were 1,850 commercial vehicles for the month.  There was 23 overweight trucks in 

February; 16 warnings; 7 suspensions and one of the tractor trailers was greater than the 3%.  Mrs. deLeon said you 

had less trucks but you had more warnings and more overweight’s.  Mr. Schleyer said it’s been pretty consistent.  

Mrs. deLeon said for the percentage of trucks.  Mr. Schleyer said it’s probably a couple of a tenth of a percent when 

you work it out, but yes. 

 



IESI Bethlehem Landfill Committee Minutes 

March 20, 2014 

 

     Page 3 of 7 

 

  

Mr. Schleyer said we have the BRE flare shutdowns listed on the report.  This does detail the February 12
th
 

shutdown from the turbine that was previously discussed and the flare startups.  To highlight, there was the 

February 20
th
 shutdown which was a result of damage to a header pipe from a bulldozer near the working face.  It 

did shut the power plant down as well as the flare.   

 

Mr. Schleyer said they did have an odor complaint resulting from that header breakage from a resident on Skyline 

Drive.  Everything was shut down.  There was a temporary repair made to the header, then they restarted the 

equipment. That was the same day that Priscilla and Chris were on site for inspection which was discussed last 

month as well. 

 

Mr. Taylor said the flare shut down, for the record, and it indicates the repair to that pipe took place on February 

25
th
.  The repair went okay.  Mr. Schleyer said it was just a permanent repair to the pipeline. They had to order parts 

in to get it completed.  Mr. Taylor said it’s as good as it was?  Mr. Schleyer said yes.  Mr. Taylor said he doesn’t 

see any odor complaints for that day.  He’s assuming you were able to do it without much gas getting out to the 

atmosphere.  Mr. Schleyer said they prepped everything before the power plant shut down, made the repair, and 

then got things started up again. 

 

Mr. Schleyer said they did discuss the North Slope that it was passable finally after months of being frozen.  The 

abatement system, LMC-7 was discussed last month and that’s functioning again.  Leachate flow rates they are 

starting to show influence of the following and the range that we’ve had, particularly LMC-8, what they are 

continuing to monitor and report them monthly.  The radiation monitoring, which was reported last month, a couple 

from February and then one was March 12
th
.  These were all medical waste types that are accepted for the landfill.  

These are all incidental to the waste, just to clarify that.  It’s not a load of radioactive waste.  It’s an incidental 

waste from a resident or someone who had a stress test or a medical test at a hospital, which is related to an 

individual’s waste.   

 

Mr. Schleyer said construction is complete in Cell 4-E stage 2.  Final tie-ins were completed and storm water 

diversion berm was removed.  That’s all in place and that is the current disposal cell that’s been ongoing.    Mrs. 

deLeon said can you find out the dates when these things started?  Mr. Schleyer said it started this week when they 

were filling it.  That was the new cell. 

 

Mr. Taylor said here’s 4E not broken into stages. Stage 1 is the southernmost stage and was already filled and Stage 

2 in the middle just got activated.  Mrs. deLeon would like a copy.  Mr. Schleyer said he can get her a better 

drawing.  Mrs. deLeon said she wants to the dates they started filling the cells.  When was Phase III over with?  Mr. 

Schleyer said most of Phase III was before IESI purchased the landfill.  He doesn’t know when parts of Phase III 

were completed.  He’ll get that information and find out as much history as he can.   Mrs. deLeon said just tell her 

when the last dump load went in and was covered.  That’s when it stopped smelling.  The last time you put garbage 

in and covered it with dirt.  Mr. Schleyer said they are in the annual operations report.  You’ll see where a lot of this 

where the synthetic cap is on it.  In previous submittals, they have included those kinds of drawings.  Mrs. deLeon 

said if she had only gotten a pdf, she might not have gotten the drawings with it.  Mr. Taylor said what Mrs. deLeon 

was getting at was she was most recently disposing of garbage in the general area of 4A, 3D and 4F as part of a 

minor permit modification to change the grades in that area and disposal of that garbage in that area was taking 

place  until recently to the end of last week.  Mr. Schleyer said that’s correct.  That was spread out over this area of 

4B and 4A and the small portion of this Phase 3 to get the trenches to drain, that was the permit minor approval for 

reconfiguring the grades.  They filled in an area that was in between 4B and 4D and then they came across with the 

near final lift across the top while they were completing the cell and getting through the winter.  There was another 

lift across the general area.  Mr. Taylor said you are basically discarding of garbage in that area, generically saying 

top of the hill, basically all winter.  Mr. Schleyer said that’s correct.  Mrs. deLeon said her point being that lately, 

they’ve been filling closest to the top of the mountain.  That’s when we started getting more landfill odor 

complaints.  She’s curious as to what the dates are.   Ms. Louder requested a copy of whatever he was sending Mrs. 

deLeon.   Mr. Schleyer said he can send it to her directly or forward it to Leslie.  Mrs. deLeon said just say this was 

asked at the meeting for him to provide and have Leslie distribute it.   

 



IESI Bethlehem Landfill Committee Minutes 

March 20, 2014 

 

     Page 4 of 7 

 

  

Mr. Taylor said he has a question about 4E.  That final tie-in work still needed to be inspected and certified by your 

engineers and the DEP and have the DEP sign off on the very final tie-in work.  Were all those certifications 

completed?  Mr. Schleyer said yes, Martin and Martin had sent those to the DEP.  Mr. Taylor said doesn’t the DEP 

issue a letter saying okay, we accept 4E as ready to accept garbage.  Mr. Schleyer said they did have that letter. It 

was previously provided and this was just basically the storm flap removal which they just gave them an update to 

the certification of that to show them that it was completed properly.  Mr. Taylor said the previous certification was 

substantially complete, so you don’t get another one.  Mr. Schleyer said correct.   

 

Mr. Schleyer said we did discuss February 1
st
 through 20

th
 complaints last month.  We just discussed February 20

th
 

with the header line pipe break, and then two new ones for discussion this month were the February 22
nd

, a 

neighbor on Ringhoffer called to say it’s a roll off truck driver was crossing over on Ringhoffer Road and 

apparently he told the guy not to use the road and the driver made a rude gesture towards him.  They found out who 

it was, notified the hauling company and they straightened that out real quick.  They also provided the proper 

detour route which they had already had.  Apparently, a piece of Route 412 was closed and they were using that 

route.  March 18
th
 they had a Steel City resident call up at the end of the day and he stated he smelled some odors 

around his house at 2:15 pm, 3:05 pm and 4:45 pm and he also had smelled odors at the Little League Field at 

Freemansburg.  Sam was on site the following day on the 19
th
 and followed up in those areas and did not smell 

anything in the Steel City area, but did smell some odors from Grinding Acres, which is located near the Little 

League Field in Freemansburg.  Mr. Taylor said why wasn’t this report responded to on the 18
th
?  Mr. Schleyer said 

he wasn’t on site and he doesn’t believe Sam was either.  Mr. Taylor said where were you?  Mr. Schleyer said he 

was at the other landfill working.  He spoke to Mike Sheldon and he was working at the top of the work face at the 

time and couldn’t get down to track it down right away.  Mr. Taylor said if you had been on site when the 

complaint came in, you would have been able to respond to it in a timely fashion?  Mr. Schleyer said it’s possible 

that he could have.  Mrs. deLeon said if you aren’t on site, she’s sure there’s a protocol in your PPC plan, who is in 

charge then?  Mr. Schleyer said the Operations Manager would then be in charge, which is Mike Sheldon.  Mrs. 

deLeon said is he aware that if we get a complaint like this, he’s supposed to do what you or Sam would have done 

and that would have been to respond?  Mr. Schleyer said they did discuss that and they spoke to him today as well 

that they need to continue to follow up with these.  Mrs. deLeon said that’s great.   

 

Ms. Louder said they have a list of complaints from Steel City residents and discussions have been had about the 

landfill having an odor.  Mr. Donato even made the comment last night at the Council meeting that the landfill is a 

landfill and it has an odor.  That’s the bottom line, it stinks.  Occasionally, when the wind is blowing in our 

direction, the odor is coming to us.  She personally feels that the landfill when Mr. Schleyer and Sam come into 

Steel City on a complaint issue, that it’s not always a burn barrel and it’s not always a garbage truck driving by.  

She made a specific complaint back in December that she smelled a sweet pungent smell. The report came back as 

a burn barrel and a garbage truck, but she’s sorry.  The garbage trucks don’t hang around long enough in Steel City 

as they drive like maniacs to begin with.  For her to pick up on that kind of a smell that it was that strong when she 

opened her door, she smelled it.  What she is asking IESI to do is to own up to it.  Own the complaint.  If it is  your 

smell in her backyard, have the decency to validate the residents who are complaining and validate the citizens of 

Lower Saucon and say, you know what, you’re right, I smell it too.  It is this or it is that, and it is coming from the 

landfill and say we are doing our best to take care of it and we thank you for calling us, but not to just dismiss it and 

turn it into a ridiculous statement about a trash barrel burning.  She has a hard time with that.  How are we to build 

any kind of a trust with IESI if IESI comes in there when we complain about something and you all stand here and 

say, tell me if you smell something.  Our phones are always ready to take the call.  We are always here for you.  But 

then when we do, we’re just made fools out of.   

 

Mr. Schleyer said we have honestly investigated every complaint and reported it as we have detected odors.  We 

have gone over within minutes of people calling us up and they’ve been outside in their driveway waiting.  We get 

there and they say you should have been here five minutes ago.  He can’t tell you how many countless times that 

he’s heard that and they have been there in less than five minutes and then you should have been here a minute ago.  

They do report every odor as they come across it.  They do admit if it’s us, they do say it’s us.  When that header 

line broke, we got a call from a neighbor on Skyline Drive and he explained what happened and said yes, it was us.  

When they were digging in some gas lines previous to that a few months before that, they had a complaint and they 



IESI Bethlehem Landfill Committee Minutes 

March 20, 2014 

 

     Page 5 of 7 

 

  

told the resident that they had just opened up an area to put in a header trench and it was probably us.  When it is 

us, we do admit it.  They don’t hide anything.  The day that you had that complaint and he did not know it was her 

at the time, he came in and he actually dropped off the cake pan right on her porch, and he did not smell anything.  

He didn’t know anyone was home and just put the cake pan on the porch and rode around the corner and started 

smelling something as they came around the corner and it led them to the burn barrel.  That’s all he can tell you.  

They honestly report whatever they smell and they don’t hide anything.  If it is them, they will say it’s them.   

 

Ms. Louder said she just thinks the residents need to be validated when they have a complaint.  On the 20
th
, from 

that gas line break, the wind changed four times and it ended up coming at them.  The funny thing was when she 

was out in the parking lot with him, she made the comment, that’s funny because she was going to say something 

about a smell and she didn’t.  That you would have owned. She just has a hard time with this, like last night all the 

people standing here saying that there’s a smell, now we’re blaming it on mulch on the opposite side of the river.  If 

the wind is coming from the landfill and blowing towards Steel City, it’s actually taking the smell of the mulch 

away from us.   

 

Mr. Schleyer said the mulch issue was referencing the Freemansburg Little League ball field and not Steel City so 

much.  It was complied that the whole way.  We do validate your complaints by responding to them and really try 

to research out what we see and what we smell at the time of the occurrence.  We’re not ignoring it; we’re not 

making light of it.  Ms. Louder said she isn’t saying you are.  She’s just saying she feels as if we’re being validated 

and we are smelling it over there.  Leachate, she didn’t know what it smelled like, but when she came to a meeting 

Mr. Schleyer taught her what that smell was and now she knows what that smell is.  She’s very familiar with it 

now.  If she’s taking the dog out at 2:30 am and she walks outside, that’s what she smells.  Then there was seepage 

a week before or after, and everything was just in place.  We’re never validated over there.  We’re just never 

validated and she thinks it’s time that IESI starts validating people to the best of their ability.  The other thing is on 

the 12/31 report, the report was written four hour after she called.  She called at 9:00 am in the morning and that 

report came in around noon.  You missed the air flow.   

 

Mrs. deLeon said that’s why it’s very important that DEP gets called when there’s an odor complaint.  If they want 

to call the landfill, that’s fine; whatever is in our report because they need to know the timing too.  Eventually they 

will see it, but it’s after the fact.  Ms. Louder said that call went directly to DEP as she never bothered calling them.  

Mr. Schleyer said they called IESI and they went and investigated it.  If he wrote the report four hours later, that 

doesn’t mean he wasn’t closer to your house before four hours.  You have to investigate it before you can write the 

report.  Ms. Louder said understood. 

 

Mr. Taylor said regarding the complaint log in your report, there’s seven complaints total listed, six odor and one 

traffic related.  In addition to that, DEP reporting duplicates of your reporting of the February 12
th
 odor incident.  

That reporting is common to both reports.  The DEP report contains an odor incident on February 9
th
 which was 

called directly into them and does not appear in your complaint log and the DEP report contains the reporting of an 

odor incident on February 20
th
 which is separate and different than the one IESI reported on February 20

th
.  What 

he’s trying to get at, in addition to the six odor incidents documented in your complaint log, there’s two others that 

were directly called in to DEP that you were never made aware of.  That’s why they don’t appear in your complaint 

log.  Mr. Schleyer said that was stated before.  IESI’s complaint log, and it always has been through the meetings, 

what is reported directly to the landfill itself.   If DEP gets something different, they follow up with their own 

inspection reports.  These have always been reports that went to the landfill itself whether it’s a truck or an odor or 

any type of complaint. Mr. Taylor said for the record we have a grand total of eight odor complaints, six uniquely 

from IESI’s complaint log, and two uniquely from the DEP complaint investigation reporting for a total of eight 

between February 1
st
 and March 18

th
.   

 

Mr. Schleyer said the February leachate report we had a total discharge of 2,784,725 gallons which includes 

abatement well water, leachate from the old landfill sections and Phase IV totaled 1,509,465 gallons.  Generally, 

LMC-6 is flowing in the teens, around 16 or 17 gallons per acre, per day.  LMC-7 has been fluctuating at least for 

the month of February.  It’s coming through from 33 gallons per acre, per day to 23 gallons per acre, per day.  

These are recorded on a weekly basis.  LMC-8 had a peak flow of 617 gallons per acre, per day, at the end of the 



IESI Bethlehem Landfill Committee Minutes 

March 20, 2014 

 

     Page 6 of 7 

 

  

month and a low of 223 gallons per acre, per day.  Over each week, it was over the 100 gallons per acre, per day 

which you referenced in your meeting last night.  Mr. Taylor said for each of the eleven weeks recorded year-to-

date, secondary flows in LMC-8 exceeded the 100 gallons per acre, per day.  He doesn’t want to call it a limit, but 

it’s a DEP action level for investigating.  LMC-7 kind of crept up there higher than its historical flows, then 

dropped back down, are there any ideas of what was going on there?  Mr. Schleyer said he noticed that as well and 

he had mobile dredge come in and they jetted out some lines in that area, so that had lowered the flow rate there.  It 

took a little while as it was such a bitter, cold winter that you can’t fill a metal tank with water and expect it to 

work.  There was no escape.  It was just a flow.   

 

Mrs. deLeon said let’s talk about PS-2 and PS-3.  Mr. Schleyer said PS-2 has always been very low.  The detection 

zone is not changing.  It’s the same with PS-1, and PS-3 is the gallons per acre, per day.  That’s the one that had 

more of a fluctuating higher flow.  He was explaining last night about reopening sealed liners to reattach a new cell.  

That can cause storm events or other incidents at the time of construction that can cause flow rates in your detection 

zone.  We’re anticipating that this will continue to slow down at that rate as it’s been all tied together.  That’s all he 

has for the events that occurred in February at the landfill. 

 

Mr. Taylor said there was an inspection done today at the landfill facility starting a little after 11:00 am.  Al 

Schleyer led the inspection and Chris Taylor and Donna Louder attended the inspection tour of the landfill.  He’d 

like to have the following observations made part of the record: 

 

 No mud, litter or odors were observed along Applebutter Road, at the entrance drive or at the parking lot 

 The BRE plant was running 

 Wind was blowing out of, which means from the west, estimated at 10 to 20 MPH 

 There were 8 to 9 trucks lined up on the access road waiting to get to the working face to dump 

 As Mr. Schleyer explained, they are dumping the fluff layer in the newly opened Cell 4-E Stage 2 

 It’s a little bit of a logistical difficulty getting trucks in and out of there at this time so it’s taking a little 

longer and the line of trucks is a little longer than normal.   

 The truck wash was in operation 

 Trucks were not tracking mud out 

 Work to tie in a condensation line at the landfill flare is a new condensation line and hooked up to the new 

blower that was installed early winter, but the conditions weren’t that great to put it in until now. 

 There is some mud on the access road that leads to the top of the landfill 

 Sweeping of the road is ongoing 

 There was some scattered garbage on the south face of the landfill 

 Quite a lot of litter on the north face of the landfill 

 Up to seven pickers were observed working to pick up garbage on the faces of the landfill 

 The drilling of the new gas wells is completed, seven vertical and two horizontal wells which are more or 

less collectors.  The drilling work is completed and work is now proceeding to tie those wells into the gas 

collection system. 

 Garbage is being disposed in newly opened cell 4E, stage 2.  That started just this week. 

 The fluff layer is being placed in the cell which by regulation consists only of municipal solid waste 

 Two spotters were observed at the working face checking loads for prohibited items and removing them 

from the garbage to protect the liner 

 Well sampling took place this week and was completed this week 

 Landfill flare was running at 1,660 degrees Fahrenheit at 992 standard cubic feet per minute which 

indicates that the BRE plant is drawing a pretty heavy load of gas 

 The west high wall was observed and fresh sluffing of soil and some rocks was observed, so some rock and 

soil has moved and fallen down off the face of the wall and ended up at the bottom of the wall or the toe of 

the wall.  It appears that the rim at the top of the wall may have migrated back somewhat in some areas and 

soil and rock material are now falling in the storm water channel at the base of the wall.  As required, they 

are aware of the situation and has the cleanout of the channel on his list.   

 



IESI Bethlehem Landfill Committee Minutes 

March 20, 2014 

 

     Page 7 of 7 

 

  

Mrs. deLeon said this looks different than a month ago when we were there.  Mr. Taylor said yes.  

 

 Mr. Taylor conducted a tour of Steel City beginning at 12:20 pm and he did not observe any landfill related 

noises or odors in Steel City. 

 

Mr. Taylor said that ends his inspection observations. 

 

Ms. Louder said at last night’s Council meeting, Mr. Taylor submitted a report.  In the report, he requested that Mr. 

Schleyer stay on site at the IESI Bethlehem and not be split between two facilities.  She personally feels that the 

Township has hired Mr. Taylor as an expert and professional and he has a great deal of knowledge regarding the 

landfill operations and knows what to look for.  She personally feels that if he’s recommending that Mr. Schleyer, 

the Compliance Manager remain at the Bethlehem site, there must be a reason for it and she feels that after being on 

the tour today there’s a lot of activity going on at the landfill and again, she feels that is something that should be 

taken care of.  Not to tell IESI how to manage their employees, but as a recommendation to protect our Township.   

 

Mrs. deLeon said after the meeting, she made a comment to reporters about the landfill and she’s always said this, 

and Allen you know she said this, you guys do a good job when it comes to  operating the landfill.  You usually are 

on top of stuff, and she complimented you, but that does not mean that the things discussed last night were not 

important and that we have some serious issues going on with the concerns he raised, especially with the odors that 

again we don’t know where they are really coming from.  We do sometimes, but we don’t always know.  She just 

doesn’t want that comment to be mistaken.  She’s always said as compared to other owners of the landfill, they are 

doing a good job.  Mr. Schleyer said they always appreciate the good feedback as well as any problems.  Landfill 

management is done by a team of people, not by an individual, so any given individual has to be on site at all times 

to keep operations running.  There are other people that can continue with operations as needed.  People go on 

vacations all the time or they take days off, so they can’t be there all the time anyway.  He feels we cover the both 

landfills.  He and Sam are a team covering both sites and they have Operations Managers at each landfill on a 

permanent basis.  He doesn’t feel they are neglecting any responsibilities or duties in that position. 

 

Mrs. deLeon said the Township did the minutes and they were circulated to us.  She guesses we are not approving 

them, usually a committee approves minutes, we correct them, we like them, we don’t like them, typos.  Mr. Taylor 

said he checked all the numbers and made sure they were all correct.  (could not hear Mr. Taylor).  Mrs. deLeon 

said today’s minutes are going to be typed and where are they going?  She’s confused and she’s on Council.  Mr. 

Taylor said the minutes from the last meeting were distributed by email on February 28
th
 and then on March 5

th
 she 

indicates the minutes were on the website.  Mrs. deLeon said she didn’t know if we were supposed to review them, 

so he should pass them along to Diane. She can replace the current minutes on the website.  They will get 

distributed and it won’t be an agenda items.  Maybe that should be an agenda items, so at least we can talk about 

the minutes.  It would be previously monthly minutes.  Mr. Taylor said he’ll check them as soon as he gets them.  

He did that last time.  Most of the important numbers were cited correctly.  He didn’t see anything that made him 

get on the phone or internet and say we need to get this fixed.  He thought they were very well done and complete, 

but he’ll always check them and if he sees anything wrong, he’ll bring it to everyone’s attention. No one is giving 

us an opportunity to review them before they are widely distributed.  There was a distribution on February 28
th
, so 

maybe that was our chance to look them over and get them approved.   Mrs. deLeon said okay, she’ll talk to Leslie 

about that.  Mr. Taylor said it would be good to give us a chance to look at them and make sure all the right 

information is getting out there.  Mrs. deLeon said she’ll ask Leslie to give us a couple days and put in the email to 

please respond by a certain date if you have any changes.   

 

Mr. Taylor said our next meeting is April 17
th
.  If anyone has a conflict let him know.  It’s at 1:00 pm here at the 

Township Council meeting room.  The inspection at 11:00 am worked well for him.  It’s important to do the 

inspection before the meeting.   

 

The meeting adjourned, the time was 2:15 p.m. 

 


